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PREFACE

This is the second edition of the State and Metropoli-
tan Area Data Book (SMADB) produced by Bernan
Press. The U.S. Census Bureau terminated its Statistical
Compendia program in 2011. The Statistical Compendia
program included the Statistical Abstract of the United
States and its supplemental local area products—the
State and Metropolitan Area Data Book and the County
and City Data Book (CCDB). The Census Bureau pub-
lished seven editions of SMADB, periodically since
1979, and 14 editions of CCDB, periodically since 1944.
Since 1992, Bernan Press has produced 24 editions of
County and City Extra, a comprehensive volume that
combines some of the features of both SMADB and
CCDB, and six editions of Places, Towns, and Townships,
a companion volume with details about cities and towns
not included in either CCDB or County and City Extra.
Bernan continues to publish annual editions of County
and City Extra that include most of the content of the
former CCDB, plus many additional features. County
and City Extra includes sections of state and metropoli-
tan area data, but the State and Metropolitan Area Data
Book includes a wider selection of state data, a table
of data for micropolitan areas, and several tables that
include the component counties of the metropolitan and
micropolitan areas.

The SMADB is a convenient summary of statistics on
the social and economic structure of the states, met-
ropolitan areas, and micropolitan areas in the United
States. It is designed to serve as a statistical reference
and guide to other data publications and sources. The
latter function is served by the source citations in
Appendix A, “Source Notes and Explanations.” This
volume includes data from a variety of statistical pub-
lications and electronic sources, including nonprofit
organizations, private businesses, as well as the major-
ity of the federal statistical agencies. Publications and
Internet sites listed as sources usually contain additional
detail and more comprehensive discussions of defini-
tions and concepts than can be presented here. Data not
available in printed publications issued by the contrib-
uting agency but obtained from websites are identified
in the source notes. More information on the subjects
covered in this publication is generally made available

by its source, including additional methodological infor-
mation about how the data are collected or produced.

Changes in this edition

All data have been updated to the most recent available
year.All population and housing data have been updated
based on the 2010 census. Detailed social and economic
characteristics have been updated and expanded using
the 1-year estimates from the American Community
Survey, including information on health insurance,
household type, migration, and commuting.

The results of the 2016 presidential election are included.

States. Data are presented for the United States, the 50
states, and the District of Columbia. There are 1,362
data items presented for these areas in Tables A-1
through A-82. The states and the District of Columbia
are presented in alphabetical order under the U.S. total.

Metropolitan areas and metropolitan divisions. Data
are presented for the 382 metropolitan areas and 31
metropolitan divisions defined as of July 2015. There are
162 data items presented for these areas in Tables B-1
through B-14.

Metropolitan areas and metropolitan divisions with their
component counties. Data are presented for 50 data
items in Tables C-1 through C-4. The 1167 counties and
county equivalents are presented under their respective
metropolitan area or metropolitan division.

Micropolitan areas with their component counties. Table
D-1 includes 12 data items for 551 micropolitan areas
and their 658 component counties.

Appendixes. Appendix A provides information on source
notes and explanations for the dataitemsinTables A through
D. Appendix B presents a brief introduction to central
concepts of statistics and provides the methodological
approach of principal sources. Appendix C presents a
discussion of the geographic concepts relevant to this
volume, as well as the current definitions for metropolitan
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areas. Appendix D offers a bibliography of the latest state
specific abstracts published since 1999. For additional
information on data presented, please consult the source
publications available in local libraries, write to the agency
indicated in the source notes, or visit the Internet site listed.

Statistics for the nation. Extensive data at the national
level can be found in the ProQuest Statistical Abstract

of the United States 2017, co-published with Bernan
Press.

Statistics for counties and cities. Data for counties and
cities may be found in Bernan’s annual County and City
Extra—the 25th edition is scheduled to publish in the
fall—and Places, Towns, and Townships most recently
published in 2016.



GUIDE TO TABULAR PRESENTATION

Example of Table Structure:

Table A-20. Public Elementary and Secondary Schools—Finances and Teachers
Revenues, 2013-2014
(millions of dollars)
Source
Total enroliment 2013-2014
Geographic area (thousands)’ Total Local State Federal
United States...........ccociis i 50,017 623,209 280,507 288,196 54,505
Alabama...... 746 7,397 2,493 4,066 839
Alaska.... 131 2,677 530 1,836 312
Arizona... 1,102 9,594 4174 4217 1,204
Arkansas 490 5134 1,876 2,665 592
California.......... 6,313 69,343 23,107 39,293 6,943

TEnroliment represents the total count of pupils that are enrolled on or about October 1st of the survey year. These data are from the National Public Education Financial Survey.

Unit indicators show the specified quantities in which
data items are presented. They are used for two pri-
mary reasons. Sometimes data are not available in
absolute form. Other times, we round the numbers in
order to save space to show more data, as in the case
above.

If no unit indicator is shown, data presented are in
absolute form (see Table B-1 for an example). When

needed, unit indicators are found in the column or span-
ner headings for the data items as shown above.

Footnotes below the bottom rule of table pages give
information relating to specific data items or figures
within the table.

Further information on individual tables can be found
in Appendix A, located in the back of the book.

Examples of Unit Indicator Interpretation table example:

Geographic area Year Item Unit indicator Number shown Multiplier
United States.. 2013-2014 Total enroliment (thousands) 50,017 1,000
United States.. 2013-2014 Revenues (million dollars) 623,209 1,000,000

To determine the figure, it is necessary to multiply the number shown by the unit indicator.

Total enrollment, 2013-2014 =

50,017 * 1,000 or 50,017,000

Total revenues, 2013-2014 = 623,209 * 1,000,000 or 623,209,000,000

In many tables, details will not add to the totals shown because of rounding.
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EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS AND TERMS

The following symbols, used in the tables throughout
this book, are explained in condensed form in footnotes
on the tables where they appear.

0 Represents zero or rounds to zero.

D  Figure withheld to avoid disclosure pertaining to
a specific individual or organization; or does not
meet statistical standards for reliability of derived
figure.

NA Data not available.

X  Figure not applicable because column heading

and stub line make entry impossible, absurd, or
meaningless.

The following terms are also used throughout this
publication:

Averages. An average is a single number or value that
is often used to represent the “typical value” of a group
of numbers. It is regarded as a measure of “location” or
“central tendency” of a group of numbers.

The arithmetic mean is the type of average used most
frequently. It is derived by summing the individual item
values of a particular group and dividing the total by the
number of items. The arithmetic mean is often referred
to simply as the “mean” or “average.”

The median of a group of numbers is the middle num-
ber or value when each item in the group is arranged
according to size (lowest to highest or vice versa); it gen-
erally has the same number of items above it as well
as below it. If there is an even number of items in the
group, the median is taken to be the average of the two
middle numbers.

Rates. A rate is a quantity or amount of an item mea-
sured in relation to a specified number of units of another
item. For example, unemployment rate is the number of
unemployed people per 100 people in the civilian labor
force. Examples of other rates found in this publication
include birth rate, which is the number of births per 1,000
population; infant death rate, the number of infant deaths
per 1,000 live births; and crime rate, which is the number
of serious offenses per 100,000 population.

A per capita figure represents a specific type of rate
computed for every person in a specified group (or pop-
ulation). It is derived by taking the total for a data item

(such as income, taxes, or retail sales) and dividing it by
the number of people in the specified population.

Ranks. Various data items in Tables A—States, and
Tables B—Metropolitan Areas, of this publication are
ranked from highest to lowest with a rank of 1 repre-
senting the highest rank. In both tables, when areas
share the same rank, the next-lower rank is omitted.

In Table A, only the 50 states are ranked; the District of
Columbia is not included in the state rankings. In Table
B, only 366 metropolitan statistical areas (MSAs) are
ranked. Not ranked are the 29 metropolitan divisions,
which make up 11 metropolitan statistical areas. Areas
not ranked are indicated by an “X” in the data cell.

Index numbers. An index number is a measure of dif-
ference or change, usually expressed as a percentage,
relating one quantity (the variable) of a specified kind
to another quantity of the same kind. Index numbers
are widely used to express changes in prices over peri-
ods of time but may also be used to express differences
between related subjects for a single point in time.

To compute a price index, a base year or period is
selected. The base year price (of the commodity or ser-
vice) is then designated as the base or reference price to
which the prices for other years or periods are related.
Many price indexes use the year 2000 as the base year;
in tables, this is shown as “2000 = 100.” A method of
expressing the price relationship is: the price of a set of
one or more items for a related year (e.g., 1990) divided
by the price of the same set of items for the base year-
(e.g., 2000). The result multiplied by 100 provides the
index number. When 100 is subtracted from the index
number, the result equals the percentage change in price
from the base year.

Current and constant dollars. Statistics in some tables
are expressed in both current and constant dollars (for
example, see Table A-40). Current dollar figures reflect
actual prices or costs prevailing during the specified
year(s). Constant dollar figures are estimates represent-
ing an effort to remove the effects of price changes from
statistical series reported in dollar terms. In general,
constant dollar series are derived by dividing current
dollar estimates by the appropriate price index for the
appropriate period (for example, the Consumer Price
Index). The result is a series as it would presumably exist
if prices were the same throughout, as in the base year;
in other words, as if the dollar had constant purchasing
power. Any changes in this constant dollar series would
reflect only changes in real volume of output, income,
expenditures, or other measure.



MAJOR FEDERAL DATA CONTACTS

To help State and Metropolitan Area Data Book users
find more data and information about statistical publi-
cations, we are including this list of contacts for federal
agencies with major statistical programs. The intent is to
give a single, first-contact point-of-entry for users of sta-
tistics. These agencies will provide general information
on their statistical programs and publications, as well as
specific information on how to order their publications.
We are also including the Internet addresses for many of
these agencies. These URLs were current in May 2017.

Executive Office of the President

Office of Management and Budget
Administrator

Office of Information and Regulatory Affairs
Office of Management and Budget

725 17th Street, NW

Washington, DC 20503

Information: 202-395-3080
https://www.whitehouse.gov/omb

Department of Agriculture

Economic Research Service
U.S. Department of Agriculture
1400 Independence Ave., SW
Washington, DC 20250
Information: 202-720-2791
https://www.ers.usda.gov/

National Agriculture Statistics Service
USDA-NASS

1400 Independence Ave., SW

Washington, DC 20250

Information: 202-720-2791 or 800-727-9540
https://www.nass.usda.gov/

Department of Commerce

U.S. Census Bureau

Customer Services Branch

U.S. Census Bureau

4600 Silver Hill Road

Washington, DC 20233

Information and publications: 1-800-923-8282
https://www.census.gov/

Department of Commerce—Continued

Bureau of Economic Analysis

1441 L Street, NW

Washington DC 20230

Information and publications: 202-606-9900
https://www.bea.gov/

International Trade Administration
1401 Constitution Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20230
Information: 1-800-872-8723
http://trade.gov/

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
Central Library

U.S. Department of Commerce

1315 East-West Highway

SSMC3, 2nd Floor

Silver Spring, MD 20910

Library: 301-713-2600 x.0157
https://www.lib.noaa.gov/

Department of Defense

Department of Defense

Office of Public Communication
1400 Defense Pentagon
Washington, DC 20301-1400
Information: 703-571-3343
https://www.defense.gov/

Department of Education

National Library of Education

U.S. Department of Education

400 Maryland Avenue, SW

Washington, DC 20202

Education information and statistics: 1-800-872-5327
Education publications: 1-877-433-7827
https://www.ed.gov/

xiii
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Department of Energy

Energy Information Administration
National Energy Information Center

1000 Independence Ave., SW

Washington, DC 20585

Information and publications: 202-586-8800
https://www.eia.gov/

Department of Health and Human Services

Health Resources and Services Administration HRSA
Information Center

P.O. Box 2910

Merrifield, VA 22116

Information Center: 1-888-275-4772
http://www.hrsa.gov/

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration

1 Coke Cherry Road

Rockville, MD 20857

Information: 240-276-2130

Publications: 1-877-726-4727
https://www.samhsa.gov/

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
Public InquiriessMASO

1600 Clifton Road

Atlanta, GA 30333

Public inquires: 1-800-232-4636
https://www.cdc.gov/

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS)
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
7500 Security Boulevard

Baltimore, MD 21244

Information: 1-877-267-2323

https://www.cms.gov/

National Center for Health Statistics
3311 Toledo Road

Hyattsville, MD 20782

Information: 1-800-232-4636
https://www.cdc.gov/nchs/

Department of Homeland Security

Office of Public Affairs

245 Murray Lane, SW

Washington, DC 20528

Information and publications: 202-282-8010
https://www.dhs.gov/

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of the Assistant Secretary for Community
Planning and Development

451 7th St., SW

Washington, DC 20410

Information: 202-708-0006

Publications: 1-800-767-7468
https://portal.hud.gov/hudporta/ HUD

Department of the Interior

U.S. Geological Survey

USGS National Center

12201 Sunrise Valley Drive

Reston, VA 20192

Information and Publications: 1-888-275-8747
https://minerals.usgs.gov/

Department of Justice

Bureau of Justice Statistics

Statistics Division

810 7th Street, NW

Washington, DC 20531

Information and publications: 202-307-0765
https://www.bjs.gov/

National Criminal Justice Reference Service
P.O. Box 6000

Rockville, MD 20849-6000

Publications: 1-800-851-3420
https://www.ncjrs.gov/

Federal Bureau of Investigation
J. Edgar Hoover Building

935 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20535-0001
Information: 202-324-3000
https://www.fbi.gov/

Department of Labor

Bureau of Labor Statistics

Office of Publications and Special Studies Services
Bureau of Labor Statistics

Postal Square Building

2 Massachusetts Ave., NE

Washington, DC 20212-0001

Information and publications: 202-691-5200
https://www.bls.gov/



Department of Labor—Continued

Employment and Training Administration
U.S. Department of Labor

Francis Perkins Building

200 Constitution Ave., NW

Washington, DC 20210

Information and publications: 1-877-872-5627
https://www.doleta.gov/

Department of Transportation

Federal Aviation Administration

800 Independence Ave., SW

Washington, DC 20591

Information and publications: 1-866-835-5322
https://www.faa.gov/

Bureau of Transportation Statistics

1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE

Washington, DC 20590

Products and statistical information: 1-800-853-1351
https://www.bts.gov/

Federal Highway Administration
Office of Public Affairs

U.S. Department of Transportation
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Washington, DC 20590
Information: 202-366-0660
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
Office of Public & Consumer Affairs

1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE,

West Building Washington, DC 20590
Information and publications: 1-888-327-4236
https://www.nhtsa.gov/

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

Statistics of Income Division

Internal Revenue Service

P.O. Box 2608

Washington, DC 20013-2608

Information and publications: 202-874-0410
https://www.irs.gov/uac/tax-stats

Department of Veterans Affairs

Department of Veterans Affairs
Office of Public Affairs

810 Vermont Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20420
Information: 202-461-7600
https://www.va.gov/

MAJOR FEDERAL DATA CONTACTS

Independent Agencies

Administrative Office of the U.S. Courts
Office of Public Affairs

1 Columbus Circle, NE

Washington, DC 20544

Information: 202-502-2600
http://www.uscourts.gov/

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System
Division of Research and Statistics

Federal Reserve System

20th & Constitution Avenue, NW

Washington, DC 20551

Information: 202-452-3000

Publications: 202-452-3245
https://www.federalreserve.gov/

Environmental Protection Agency
Ariel Rios Building

1200 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20460
Publications: 1-800-490-9198
https://www.epa.gov/

National Science Foundation

Office of Legislation and Public Affairs
National Science Foundation

4201 Wilson Boulevard

Arlington, VA 22230
Information:703-292-5111
https://www.nsf.gov/

Securities and Exchange Commission
Office of Public Affairs

Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, NE

Washington, DC 20549

Information: 202-551-4120
Publications: 202-551-4040
https://www.sec.gov/

Social Security Administration’

Office of Public Inquiries

6401 Security Boulevard

Baltimore, MD 21235

Information and Publications: 1-800-772-1213
https://www.ssa.gov/
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